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North Alabama Public Service Broadcasters
Licensee of Station WQJJ-LP

Jasper, Alabama
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Petition To Deny Application For Construction Permit For A Low Power FM Broadcast Station

My name is Brett EImore. | am a resident of Jasper, Alabama and a 16 year radio
veteran. | come from a radio family, as my father has been, in the broadcasting business for over
40 years. The basis for the filing of this petntlon to.deny are glarmg false statements made in the
application which violate U.S. CODE, TITLE 18, SECTION 1001 u.s. CODE TITLE 47 SEC’ﬂON 312( a)1)
and U.S. CODE, TITLE 47, SECTION 503 and also questionable business and/or broadcast practices.

WQJI-LP is licensed to the North Alabama Public Service Broadcasters. This organization
was organized on September 13, 1999 as stated on an initial application for a construction
permit, file no. BNPL 2001061588C whrch was granted on 9/10/2003 However the North
Alabama Public Service Broadcasters was NOT orgamzed under the laws of the State of
Alabama In fact this organization was orgamzed Apnl 1, 2008, and NOT by Bessie. P
Hammond whlch is claimed to be the President of thrs organization. It was in fact orgamzed by
Ed Smith. (Exhubnt one)

On the recent application, and all others pertalmng to WaQll- LP, | fully. believe the
Commrssron will find Section II, Part 6 falsely answered ThIS section crtes CHARACT ER ISSUES
and reads as follows: :

The applicant certifies that neither the applicant nor any party to the application has or has had
any interest in, or connection with:

a.any broadcast application in any proceeding where character issues were left unresolved or
were resolved adversely against the applicant or party to the application; or
b.any pending broadcast application in which character issues have been raised.



In each application, this question was answered “Yes”. However, Bessie P. Hammond is the wife
of Terry Keith Hammond. Mr. Hammond acts as the General Manager of WQJJ-LP and has a
long history with the FCC. In a Memorandum and Order adopted June 22, 2009, (EB Docket No.
06-163, File No. EB-03-1H-0130, File No. BRH-20050401AAA, Facility ID No. 81640), attached as
exhibit two, the FCC ruled against the renewal of Keith Hammond’s FM radio station in
Shamrock, Texas, KBKH-FM.

In this Memorandum and Order, the FCC cites in Section Ill Part 12:

“In this case, Mr. Hammond has been convicted of a felony. We find that this criminal
misconduct justifies a finding that Mr. Hammond has demonstrated his propensity to evade,
rather than comply with law and regulations that would include the Communications Act and
the Commission's rules and policies. Our finding in this regard is reinforced by the additional
instances in which Mr. Hammond was warned or cited for unauthorized and unlicensed
operation of broadcast stations prior to his acquisition of the Station. For these reasons, we

[ind that Mr. Hammond does not possess the character qualifications required by this

Commission to be or remain a licensee.”

Although Mr. Hammond is not the licensee, his wife is the lone board member of this
organization that is not registered as stated in the applications and he acts as General Manager
of the radio station, WQUI-LP. In fact, if you will look through initial applications for WQJJ-LP,
(File Nos. BNPL - 20010615BBC, BMPL — 20051021AAA) Mr. Hammond was listed on the
applications in the “Preparers Certification” section, however after his felony conviction, this
oddly changed to his wife’s name. The apphcatlons also list email addresses that use domains
owned by Mr. Hammond (Monsterfm. com). Also, the WQUl- LP official website
(Worldwidefm. com) is owned by Mr. Hammond and the station’s official Facebook account has
Mr. Hammond answering questions from followers. (Exhibit three)

C M Hammond is also the only person on the air at the station, which has been
operatmg out of a residence on Hillsdale Road in Jasper AL, whlch mcludes a tower with guy
wires anchored by blocks. They were recently ewcted for non-payment which is the basis of this
application to modify. (Exhibit four with audio attached)

- Finally, inan email from Mr. Hammond to Tom: Roberts Drrector of Broadcastmg at
the Umversnty of Alabama Mr. Hammond represents the station in trymg to obtain a network
affiliation. After not recelvmg a contract thh the Unlversrty, WQJJ -LP turned off their
transmitter and Iet a nerghbonng sngnal on 97 7 FM bleed into the market and turned the waQll-
LP transmitter. back ON and air commercrals They even promoted this conduct on social media.
(Exhnbtt five and audio attached)

I believe this shows a clear “connection” to someone who has been found by the
Commission to not have the character qualifications, due to his felony conviction and countless
issues with the Commission.



Section Il Part 8 of the application we are petitioning involves Unlicensed Operations. It
reads as follows:

“The applicant certifies, under pena!ty of perjury, that neither the apphcant nor any party to
the application has engaged in any manner, mdlvndually or WIth other persons groups,
organizations, or other entities, in the unhcensed operatnon of any station in violation of Section
301 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. Section 301.”

We will once again reference Memorandum and Order adopted June 22, 2009, (EB
Docket No. 06-163, File No. EB-03-1H-0130, File No. BRH-20050401AAA, Facility ID No. 81640),
attached as exhibit two, the FCC ruled against the renewal of Keith Hammond’s FM radio
station in Shamrock, Texas, KBKH-EM.

In that Memorandum and Order, Section lIl Part 10, the Commission stated the
following:

“In addition to his theft conviction, there are other instances in which Mr. Hammond
has demonstrated a propensity to ignore or evade lawful requirements prescribed by statute

and Commission rules. The Commission's records reveal that Mr. Hammond engaged in
multlgle mstances of unauthorized ogeratlon of unhcensed radio broadcast statlans in

warning letters to Mr. Hammond concerning such unlicensed operations on March 11 and July
14, 1999 and at least one citation for the unlicensed operation of a radio station. In addition,

the Hearing Designation Order set forth numerous instances in which Mr. Hammond apparently
violated the Commission's rules.”

It is my opinion that Mr. Hammond is indeed a party to this application and all other
applications for WQUI-LP, which constitutes a penalty of perjury per Section Il Part 8 of the
application.

I have attached newspaper stories on both Mr. and Mrs. Hammond that question their
character as well as Facebook posts from the radio station account that attacks our community,
officials and other radio stations for the Commission to review. (Exhibit six)

The preceding being considered, | would ask that the Commission please give serious
consideration to denying the application of WQJJ-LP. Clearly, WQII-LP is being operated in a
unscrupulous manner and not in the public interest. The facility would be better in the hands of
another, more suitable licensee or, possibly even, deleted as a means of alleviating interference



so that a licensee within another community may be able to serving the public in ways which
WQII-LP is obviously not interested in pursuing. This is simply another clear and cut case of Mr.
Hammond skirting the rules and regulations of the Federal Communication Commission.

>

Brett Elmore

5/13’/!3

Date ' J

> V4 , a licensed notary public within the State of
Alabama, do herehé//séte that )/do personally know the signor of this document and that said
signor did appear before me on this date ?W .20/ ,27

and execute said document.
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Home » GovernmentRecords » BusinessEmities >  Search »  Details
Business Entity Details

ice Broadeasters; Inc. ©

ic Non-Profit Corporation

JASPER, AL

Not Provided

Exists
Walker County
4.1-2008

Not Provided

Not Provided

Not Provided
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION/BROADCASTING/MEDIAMA INTERNET

SMITH, ED

Not Provided

Not Pmded
Scanned Documents’ y

Articles of Incorporation Attached To This Email As Exhibit One and Will Be Printed and
Attached In Our Mailing
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Atticles of Incarporation @) /\ﬁ;fggc Mail Foom
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Asticle I =2

Corporate Name: North Alsbama Public Service Broadeasters, Inc. s
-4

Article TI ,_§

North Alabema Public Service Broadcssters, Inc. is & Perpetual, Non-profit organization. %%

Article T

The purpose of North Alabama Public Service Broadeasters, Inc. shall be to educate the

o

3

public in the ways of & joyful lifc by providing educational and public service %3

information from a Christian world-view. We plan to affiliate with local schools and S‘§

educational institutions; placing our emphasis on home schooling and Christian v R

Education as we serve the public through broadcasting, media and via the Internet. 52

Article IV iz

North Alshama Public Service Broadcasters, Inc. shall be governed by trustees who serve 9§

as the Board of Directors of this orgenization. §
-

Aticle V o=

Official Corporate Address: Mailing Address: g

513 West 19® Street : PO Box 2483 ga

Jasper, AL 35960 Jasper, AL 35502 -]

Article VI

Initial Board of Directors

Rev. Roy Helms, Trustee Mrs. Jan Duncan

2200 Gamble Avenue 313 19™ Street West

Jasper, AL 35501 Jasper, AL 35501

Article VII

Incorporator

North Alabama Public Service Broadcasters is founded and established by Rev. Ed
Smith, PO Box 2483; Jasper, Alabama 35502

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the undersigned incorporator executed these
Incorporation on this the { day of April, 2008.

This document prepared by:
i )
@J% jcwpm AL 2500

P STATE OF ALABAMA
. 1, Rick Atlison, Judge of Probate

2 L do hereby certify the foregoing to be

foyn b 8 tre copy.

LT 448

e eSS fuick “
EOSNEICOR " udge of Probate

BT,

P
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EXHIBIT TWO iy

Attached to the email as Exhibit Two. A Printed Copy Will Be Mailed With This Document
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TERRY KEITH HAMMOND ) EB Docket No. 06-163 ;\eoe\\l
) o 16 2013
Application for Renewal of Licensee for Station ) File No. EB-03-IH-0130 AUL 16 20
KBKH(FM),' Shamrock, Texas ) File No. BRH-20050401AAA ) om
) Facility ID No. 81640 FCC Mail Ro
)
)

MEMORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER
Adopted: June 22,2009 Released: June 22, 2009

By the Chief, Enforcement Bureau:

L INTRODUCTION

1. By this Memorandum Opinion and Order, we dismiss the above-captioned proceeding
pursuant to Section 1.92(d) of the Commission’s rules.” Based upon the evidence of his felony
conviction, we conclude that Terry Keith Hammond lacks the basic requisite character qualifications to be
and remain a Commission licensee, and note that such conclusion would have warranted revocation of the
license for Station KBKH(FM) (the “Station”) prior to its cancellation. Qur actions herein are taken
pursuant to authority delegated to the Enforcement Bureau under Section 0.111(a)(17) of the
Commission’s rules.’

1L BACKGROUND

2. On September 15, 2006, the Commission commenced a hearing proceeding to determine
whether Mr. Hammond is qualified to be and remain a licensee, whether his license for Station
KBKH(FM) should be revoked, and whether his application for renewal of the station’s license should be
granted.* The Hearing Designation Order specified numerous questions of fact and law to be determined
at hearing,

3. First, the Hearing Designation Order found that a hearing was warranted in order to
determine whether Station KBKH(FM)’s license should be revoked because Mr. Hammond’s felony

! As set forth herein, the Administrative Law Judge (“Presiding Judge”) dismissed Mr. Hammond’s application for
the renewal of the license of Station KBKH(FM) for failure to prosecute, and the Media Bureau thereafter cancelled
his authorization, deleted the station’s call letters, and ordered Mr. Hammond to cease operations. See infra
Paragraphs 6-7.

% See 47 CE.R. § 1.92(d).
® See 47 CF.R. § 0.111(a)(17).

* See Terry Keith Hammond, Order to Show Cause, Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and Hearing Designation
Order, 21 FCC Red 10267 (2006) (“Hearing Designation Order” or “HDO").
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conviction might indicate that he lacks the basic character qualifications to be and remain a licensee.’
Specifically, the Hearing Designation Order ordered Mr. Hammond to show cause, pursuant to Sections
312(a) and (c) of the Commumcanons Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act”), why the Station’s license
should not be revoked.® With regard to these issues, the Hearing Designation Order placed the burden of
proceeding with the introduction of evidence and the burden of proof on the Enforcement Bureau.’

4. Next, pursuant to Section 309(e) of the Act, the Hearing Designation Order designated
Mr. Hammond’s renewal application for the Station for hearing. The Hearing Designation Order
specified the following issues for determination: (1) whether Mr. Hammond made false certifications,
mlsrepresentatlons or otherwise demonstrated a lack of candor in applications that he filed with the
Commission;® (2) whether Mr. Hammond willfully and/or repeatedly v1olated Commission rules
governing the operation, location and equipment for Station KBKH(FM);’ and (3) whether Mr. Hammond
willfully or repeatedly failed to comply with a Commission rule requiring licensees to provide
information concerning matters within the Commission’s jurisdiction.'” The Hearing Designation Order
placed the burden of proceeding with the introduction of evidence and the burden of proof regarding these
issues on Mr. Hammond."!

5. Finally, the Hearing Designation Order provided for a determination as to whether a
forfeiture should be imposed against Mr. Hammond for willfully or repeatedly failing to comply with the
terms of his hcense for the Station and for willfully or repeatedly failing to comply with certain
Commission rules.'> Irrespective of the resolution of the issues set forth above, the Hearing Designation
Order specified that there be a determination as to whether a forfeiture should be imposed against Mr.
Hammond with respect to the apparent willful and/or repeated violations of Section 73.1015 of the
Commission’s rules," in an amount not to exceed $325,000; Sections 73.1350(a), 73.1560(b) and (d), and
73.1745(2) of the Commlssmn s rules,"* in an amount not to exceed $325,000; and Section 11 .35(a) of the
Commission’s rules," in an amount not to exceed $325 000, for any such violations that occurred or
continued within the applicable statute of limitations.'®

6. Pursuant to Section 1.91(c) and Section 1.221(c) of the Commission’s rules,'” the

> See id at 10274-275 q 17.

6 See id. at 10278-79 9 27.

7 See id. at 10280 1 29.

® See id. at 10279 § 28(3) & (4) (internal citations omitted).
® See id 9 28(5) & (6) (internal citation omitted).

10 See id. 4 28(7).

" See id. at 10280 9 30.

12 See id. §31.

3 See 47 CF.R. § 73.1015.

'* See 47 C.F.R. §§ 73.1350(a), 73.1560(b) and (d), 73.1745(a).
1 See 47 CFR. § 11.35(a).

' See HDO, 21 FCC Rod at 10280 9 31.

' See 47 CFR. §§ 1.91(c); 1.221(c).
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Hearing Designation Order ordered Mr. Hammond, to file a written notice of appearance stating that he
would appear on the specified hearing date and present evidence on the designated issues.'® In addition,
the Hearing Designation Order informed Mr. Hammond that if he failed to file a written notice of
appearance, the Station’s renewal application would be dismissed with prejudice for faiture to prosecute,
his right to a hearing would be deemed waived,'® and the issues would thereafter be resolved in
accordance with Section 1.92(c) of the Commission’s rules.*’

7. The Presiding Judge determined that Mr. Hammond received a copy of the Hearing
Deszgnatzon Order but failed to file a written notice of appearance seeking to avail himself of the right to
ahearing.”’ Accordingly, the Presiding Judge concluded that Mr. Hammond waived his rightto a
hearing, termmated the hearing proceeding, and certified to the Commission the issues set forth in
paragraph 3 above.”” Pursuant to Section 1.221(c) of the Commission’s rules, the Presiding Judge also
dismissed, with prejudice, the Station’s renewal application for failure to prosecute.”® The Presiding
Judge did not terminate the hearing proceeding.

8. Following the dismissal of the Station’s renewal application, the Media Bureau, noting
that the station’s license had explred terminated Mr. Hammond’s authority to operate the Station and
deleted the Station’s call letters.”

I DISCUSSION
A. Mr. Hammond Is Not Qualified to Be and Remain a Licensee
1. Facts

9. In connection with its investigation of a complaint alleging that the Station was not
operating in accordance with its authorization, the Commission received information and documentation
that Mr. Hammond had been convicted of a felony.”® Specifically, on June 4, 2004, judgment on a
conviction was entered against Mr. Hammond for theft of more than $1,500 but less than $20,000 in the

'® See HDO, 21 FCC Red at 10280-281 § 35.
19 .
See id.

0 See id: 47 CFR. § 1.92(c) (providing that, whenever a hearing is waived, the presiding administrative law judge
shall, at the earliest practicable date, issue an order reciting the events or circumstances constituting a waiver of
hearing, terminating the hearing proceeding, and certifying the case to the Commission).

™ See Terry Keith Hammond, Memorandum Opinion and Order, FCC 06M-37 (rel. Nov. 17, 2006). See also EB
Exhibit 1 (affidavit of Terry Keith Hammond acknowledging receipt of the Hearing Designation Order).

2 See T erry Keith Hammond, supra note 26.

3 See id: 47 CF.R. § 1.221(c) (providing that, whenever an application is designated for hearing and the applicant
fails to file a written notice of appearance within the time specified, the application will be dismissed for failure to
prosecute).

2* See Letter from Peter H. Doyle, Chief, Audio Services Division, Media Bureau, to Terry Keith Hammond, dated
January 11, 2007. Mr. Hammond filed a petition for reconsideration of the license cancellation on February 10,
2007, and supplemented that petition on June 26, 2007. The Media Bureau denied Mr. Hammond’s petition for
reconsideration. See Station DKBHK(FM), Shamrock, Texas, Letter, 22 FCC Red 18899 (MB Audio Div. 2007).

% See HDO, 21 FCC Rod at 10268 4 & n.8.
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31" Judicial District Court of Wheeler County, Texas.*® The theft occurred in 2002, prior to Mr.
Hammond’s acquisition of the Station, and involved Mr. Hammond altering checks written to the Station
and depositing them into an account that he controlled. Mr. Hammond appealed this conviction; his
appeals were denied.”’ Mr. Hammond was incarcerated but has since been released.2?

10. In addition to his theft conviction, there are other instances in which Mr. Hammond has
demonstrated a propensity to ignore or evade lawful requirements prescribed by statute and Commission
rules. The Commission’s records reveal that Mr. Hammond engaged in multiple instances of '
unauthorized operation of unlicensed radio broadcast stations in California, Louisiana, and Texas prior to
his acquisition of the Station. The Commission issued warning letters to Mr. Hammond concerning such
unlicensed operations on March 11 and July 14, 1999*° and at least one citation for the unlicensed
operation of a radio station.”® In addition, the Hearing Designation Order set forth numerous instances in
which Mr. Hammond apparently violated the Commission’s rules.*

2. Discussion

11. Section 312(a)(2) of the Act provides that the Commission may revoke any license
“because of conditions coming to the attention of the Commission which would warrant it in refusing to
grant a license or permit on an original application.”®* The character of the licensee or applicant is among
the factors that the Commission considers in determining whether the applicant has the requisite
qualifications to operate the station for which authority is sought.*® The Commission’s character

% See State of Texas v. Terry Keith Hammond, Judgment of Conviction by Jury, Case No. 4010 (31 Jud. Dist.
Wheeler County Ct., June 4, 2004). Mr. Hammond initially was sentenced to two years confinement in the State Jail
Division, which was suspended with the requirement that Mr. Hammond be placed on community supervision for
five years. On July 12, 2004, the trial court found that Mr. Hammond had violated the terms of the supervision and
it was revoked.

2" The 7" Court of Appeals, which reviewed the trial court’s judgment, ruled that it did not have jurisdiction to
consider Mr. Hammond’s appeal of the felony conviction because it was not timely filed. See Terry Keith Hammond
v. State of Texas, No. 07-04-0430-CR. (7™ Ct. App. Tex. Dec. 14, 2005). In addition, the Texas Court of Criminal
Appeals denied Hammond’s Petition for Discretionary Review of the ruling of the 7% Court of Appeals. See Terry
Keith Hammond v. State of Texas, No. PD-0313-06 (Texas Ct. Crim. Appeals Mar. 1, 2006).

% On April 17, 2006, the 7 Court of Appeals issued its mandate ordering that Hammond’s sentence be carried out,
and Mr. Hammond was incarcerated in accordance with that order. Thereafter, on February 28, 2007, Mr.
Hammond’s application for a writ of habeas corpus was granted upon a finding that Mr. Hammond received
ineffective assistance of counsel, and the 7® Court of Appeals remanded the case to the trial court for resentencing,
but did not otherwise vacate or overturn his conviction. See Ex Parte Terry Keith Hammond, Cause No. 4010-A ("
Ct. App. Tex. Feb. 28, 2007) (unpublished). The trial court reportedly reduced Mr. Hammond’s sentence to time
served and placed him on probation for two years.

% I etter from Thomas Horan, Agent, Compliance and Information Bureau, San Francisco Office, to Lick

106.7/K eith Hammond, dated March 11, 1999 (Mr. Hammond refused to sign for this letter or acknowledge it);
Letter from Stephen P. Lee, Agent, Compliance and Information Burean, South Central Region, New Orleans, LA,
to Terry Keith Hammond, dated July 14, 1999 (Mr. Hammond signed to acknowledge that he received this letter).

*® Notice of Unlicensed Radio Operation, 990R250, July 28, 1999.
3! See HDO, 21 FCC Red at 10279 9 28.

2 47US.C. § 312(2)(2).

3 See 47U.S.C. § 308(b).
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assessments focus on misconduct that demonstrates the licensee’s or applicant’s proclivity to deal
truthfully with the Commission and to comply with its rules or policies.’* The Commission considers
“evidence of any conviction for misconduct constituting a felony” relevant > The Commission believes
that “[bJecause all felonies are serious crimes, any conviction provides an indication of an applicant’s or
licensee’s prog)ensity to obey the law” and to conform to provisions of both the Act and the agency’s rules
and policies.’

12, In this case, Mr. Hammond has been convicted of a felony.>” We find that this criminal
misconduct justifies a finding that Mr. Hammond has demonstrated his propensity to evade, rather than
comply with laws and regulations that would include the Communications Act and the Commission’s
rules and policies.>® Our finding in this regard is reinforced by the additional instances in which Mr.
Hammond was warned or cited for unauthorized and unlicensed operation of broadcast stations prior to
his acquisition of the Station. For these reasons, we find that Mr. Hammond does not possess the
character qualifications required by this Commission to be or remain a licensee.

3. License Revocation

13. The Commission’s character policies provide that any felony conviction is a matter
predictive of licensee behavior and is directly relevant to the functioning of the Commission’s regulatory
mission.”” The serious conviction described above mandates the conclusion that Mr. Hammond does not
possess the requisite qualifications to be or remain a licensee. Based on the foregoing, we conclude, as a
matter of law, that revocation of Mr. Hammond’s license for the Station is mandated but for the prior
dismissal of Mr. Hammond’s application for the renewal of the Station’s license and the subsequent
termination of his authority to operate the Station. In light of our decision dismissing the above-captioned
hearing proceeding, the cancellation of Mr. Hammond’s license for Station KBKH(FM), and our finding
that Mr. Hammond is not qualified to be and remain a licensee, we do not impose a forfeiture. We
believe that these actions are a sufficient sanction in this context.*

3 See Policy Regarding Character Qualifications in Broadcast Licensing, Report, Order and Policy Statement, 102
FCC 2d 1179, 1196-98 9 37 (1986), recons. denied, 1 FCC Red 421 (1986), appeal dismissed sub nom. National
Association for Better Broadcasting v. FCC, No. 86-1179 (D.C. Cir. Jun. 11, 1987) (“Character Policy Statement”).
See also Policy Regarding Character Qualifications in Broadcast Licensing, Amendment of Part 1, the Rules of
Practice and Procedure, Relating to Written Responses to Commission Inguiries and the Making of
Misrepresentation to the Commission by Applicants, Permittees, and Licensees, and the Reporting of Information
Regarding Character Qualifications, Policy Statement and Order, 5 FCC Red 3252, 3252 9 5 (1990), recons. on
other grounds, 6 FCC Red 3448 (1991), modified on other grounds, 7 FCC Red 6564 (1992) (“1990 Character
Order”). See, e.g., Contemporary Media, Inc. v. FCC, 214 F.3d 187, 193 (D.C. Cir. 2000) (upheld as rational
Commission policy to consider any felony conviction of broadcast licensee’s or applicant’s principal as a relevant
factor in evaluating propensity to obey the law) cert. denied, 532 U.S. 920 (2001)

33 1990 Character Order, 5 FCC Red at 3252 9 4.
% See id.
7 See Paragraph 8, supra.

% See, e.g., Contemporary Media, Inc., 13 FCC Red 14437, 14442 9 11 (1998), recons. denied, 14 FCC Red 8790
(1999), aff’d Contemporary Media, Inc. v. FCC, 214 F.3d 187 (D.C. Cir. 2000), cert. denied, 532 U.S. 920 (2001).

% See Character Policy Statement, supra note 34; 1990 Character Order, supra note 34.

** See, e.g., KEGG Communications, Inc., Memorandum Opinion and Order, 20 FCC Red 11768 (Enf. Bur. 2005);
Radio Moultrie, Inc., Order of Revocation, 18 FCC Red 22950 (Enf. Bur. 2003).
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B. Dismissal of the Captioned Proceeding

14. As the Presiding Judge determined, Mr. Hammond waived his right to a hearing on the
specified issues because he failed to file a timely written appearance as prescribed by Section 1.91(c) of
the Commission’s rules.*’ Consequently, in accordance with Section 1.92(d) of the Commission’s rules,*
we dismiss the hearing proceeding. We note, however, that Mr. Hammond will be required to report to
the Commission the existence of the unresolved issues designated for hearing in this case in connection
with any application that he may file with the Commission in the future.”

v, ORDERING CLAUSES

15. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, pursuant to Section 1.92(d) and 0.111(a)(17) of the
Commission’s rules, * that the captioned hearing proceeding IS DISMISSED.

16. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Memorandum Opinion and Order
shall be sent by Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested to Terry Keith Hammond, P.O. Box 688,
Shamrock, Texas 79079 and to 6700 U.S. Highway 83, Shamrock, Texas 79079.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

Kris Anne Monteith
Chief, Enforcement Burean

1 See 47 CFR. § 1.91(c).
* See 47 CFR. § 1.92(d).

* Some examples of these applications include: Application for Construction Permit For a Commercial Broadcast
Station (FCC 301); Application for Consent to Assignment of Broadcast Station Construction Permit or License
(FCC 314); Application for Construction Permit For a Low Power FM Broadcast Station (FCC 318).

™ See 47 CF.R. §§ 1.92(d) and 0.111(a)(17).
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1 WHOIS search results fo
MONSTERFM.COM
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Get 2 with our Domnsin Buy service,

Domain Name: MONSTERFM.COM
Registrar URL: http:fmw.godaddy.com
Updated Date: 2613-88-03 07:35:48
Creation Date: 2000-08-02 16:01:27

Registrar Expiration Date: 2014-08-0215:01:27

Registrar: GoDaddy.com, LLC
N

clientDel
o, N
Domail clienfT) ibited
D cligntu i

Registrant Name: Terry Hammend < b _“"‘"\
Regi: ¢ O Is ji com

Registrant Street: 6700 US Hwy 83
Registrant City: Shamrock
Registrant State/Pravince: Texas
Registrant Postat Code: 78079
Registrant Country: United States
Admin Name: Terry Hammond
Admin Organization: Monsterim.com
Admin Streel: 6700 US Hwy 83
Adrnin City: Shamroek

Admin State/Province: Texas

Adrnin Postal Cade: 79079

Admin Country: United States
Admin Phone: +1.8062561223
Admin Fax; +1.8062561223

Admin Emall: shamrockedcgyahoo.com
Tech Name: Terry Hammond

Tech Organization: Monsterfm.com
Tech Strael: 6700 US Hwy 83

Tach City. Shamrock

Tech SlatefProvinte: Texas

Tech Pastal Code: 78079

Tech Country: United States

Tech Phone: +1.8062561223

Tech Fax. +1.8062561223

Tech Emali: shamrockedc@yanoo.com

Name Server: NS15.00MAINCONTROL.COM

NameMatch Recommendations

GoDaddy.com NameMatch has found simitar domaln names ralated to your search
Regislering muitipfe domain names may help protectvour online brand and enable you o
capture more Web traffic, which you can then directto your prirnary domain.

iable for new -

monsterim.eo Savel 1239

0

[ monsterfmaet save $9.99%r
[ monstertmorg Save $1299'
[J monstectminto ’ ' ' SAVE s299Nr
{1 monstertmus SAVE $3.98hr
[ monsterfmbiz SAVE $5.99'r
{0 monsterimme SAVE! $9.9347
3 monstertmmoni SAVE $8.99°Mr
[T wvisbiesonster com $1,149.000
{1 MonsterReviews com 743000
[ mansterTentacies com $743.007
[0 Monsierhtag.com ' $3,968.00°
1 MonsterPkcom $4,583.00° ~

« =

' WHOIS search results for:
WORLDWIDEFM.COM

c godaddy com /.

rldwidefm.comBprog =

‘Wantto buy
 this domain?

Domain Name: WORLDWIDEFIM.COM
Registrar URL: hifpiiwww.godaddy.com
Updated Date: 2013-03-11 11:54:30
Creation Date: 2011-03-11 03:19:51

Registrar Expiration Date: 2014-03-11 02:19:51

Registrar: GoDaddy.com, LLC
D clientD:

5
D i clien(TransferP

D clienty il
Registrant Name: Tery +
R Organizaf M.com

Registrant Street 6700 US Hwy 83
Registrant City: Shamrock
Registrant StatefProvince; Texas
Registrant Postal Code: 78079
Registrant Countty: United States
Admin Name: Terry Hammond
Admin Organization: MonsterFM.com
Adrin Street 6700 US Hwy 83
Admin City: Shamrack

Admin StatefProvince: Texas
Admin Postal Code: 79079

Admin Country. Unifed States
Admin Phone: +1.2052822036
Adrnin Fax +1.8062561223

Admin Email: shamrockede@yahoo.com
Tech Name: Teny Hammond

Tech Organization: Monsterf M.cam
Tech Street 6708 US Hwy 83

Tech City: Shamsock

Tech StatefProvince: Texas

Tech Postal Code: 78078

Tech Country: United States

Tech Phone: +1.2052822036

Tech Fax: +1.8062561223

Tech Email: shamrackedc@yahoo.com

NameMatch Recommendations

GoDaddy.com Namedatch has found similar domain names related to your search.
Registering multipte domain names may help proteci your anline brand and enable you to
capture more ¥¥eb traffic, which you can then direct to your primary domain,

Bainains available for new registration:

ImOO0<00000oon
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twant to wish my beautiful daughter luck as she goes into her college
orientation, tormorrow morning! She left for South Alabama with her mom,
5 1t wi g

just after lunc
be tao quiet hy

=CC Mail Hao

TAHENESH S

Marshia Pinegar
ohhh my keith it doesent seem like she is that old. she is soo
pretty 100... dont seem like my boy Is 16 either god i:m old lol

Fox-fm Wqjj

1 No, Marshia. You are not old. To have raised a child 10 adullhood,
you are SUCCESSFUL!
YLy S [ ¢ 5

Marshia Pinegar
thank u sweety expecially alone... its harder just one..

Fox-fm Waqjj

Marshia, | did not mean to not thank you for the kind words about

my "baby" girl, either. | will not brag about much but, my giris, |

will brag aboutin a second. Thanks for saying that she Is pretty. |

will definitely agree with you on that ane.
R R S N R ﬁ H

Marshia Pinegar
she is beautifu

u have every right 10 be proud...

N Raegene Mitchell

chac sarnanue ewaat bt ika har nan va

8 Like 2 Comment #» Share
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L Fox-fm Waqjj shared 97.7 Fox-FM's
- R status.

N et gt ; F 3T oy s
festerday at 2:28pm -

- Be sure to lock your FM radio on 97.7-FM

~ for Alabama Crimson Tide Football at

- 2:30PM as the Tide takes on Texas A&M in

Tuscaloosa! Why bother with trying to hear a

- noisy (static) AM station that doesn't have a

- clear signal all the way to the city limits

~ when you can get a nice, clean and clear FM

~ signal for the game? If God had intended for

~ you to listen to AM (or any other FM signal in

- Walker County that doesn't know how to

- broadcast in stereo - which is both of them),

- you would've been born with one ear! 97.7

 Fox-FM is Jasper and Walker County's Most
Listened To Radio Station® with more than
sixteen times the audience for a reason!

| Be sure to lock your FM radio on 97.7-FM
for Alabama Crimson Tide... See More

Like - Comment

Audio attached and labeled Exhibit Five and will be included via mail on CD
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EXHIBIT SIX
Offender Information Details
Texas Department of Criminal Justice R i@

Offender Information Detail

SID Number: 06720755

TDCJY Namber: . 01361320

Name: HAMMOND,TERRY KEITH

Race: w

Sex: M

Age: 43

Maximum Sentence Date: 2008-03-22

Current Facility: WHEELER

Projected Relcase Date: 2008-03-22

Parole Eligibility Date: NOT AVAILABLE

[[Carrent Offense Data:
Offense Sentence ase  [iSentence (Y-MM-
Date Offense Date County 0. DD)
2002-08-08 |LLEFL OISO hoos 0751 IWHEELER|4010  |2-00-00

$20,000
Projected Release Date:

Projected Release Date is the date, which is determined by the TDCJ Institutional Division Records
Office, that an offender is projected to be released from incarceration if not released on parole sooner.
The calculation of the projected release date is affected by offense title and offense date.

* If an offender committed their affense prior to %/1/1996 and their offense is mandatory supervision
eligible, the projected release daie is calculated as their scheduled release date to mandatory
supervision (if not pareled prior to that), when their time credits (flat time served plus good time earned)
equal their total sentence.

* If an offender committed their offense on or after 9/1/1996 and their aoffense is mandatory supervision
eligible, the projected release date is calculated as their scheduled release date 1o mandatory
supervision (if not paroled prior to that), when their time credits (lat time served plus good time earned)
equal their total sentence AND the Parole Board has approved their release to mandatory supervision
(per the Discretionary Mandatory Supervision law); however, if the Parole Board dewies the release on
mandatory supervision, the projected release date is recalculated to reflect the same date as the
maximum expiration date, which is otherwise known as their discharge date. Subsequent reviews by the
Parole Board that result in approval for mandatory supervision release result in the projected release
date being recalculated to an earlier date to allow for mandatory supervision release processing to
occur.

* If an offender is incarcerated for an offense that by law is non-mandatory supervision eligible, their

htip://168.51.178.33/webapp/TDCJ/InmateDetails jsp?sidnumber=06720755 7/3/06
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There's nothing like game night in Jasper!
Everyone has a routine they go through.
Here, you can see a van (belonging to
another radio station, of course) as the
broadcasters fuel-up at Harrison's Bar
before driving over to the high-school to
mingle with the students while broadcasting
the game...

Receled § inspected
e 16 fund

~ FCC wiail Room

More attachments to this email will be labeled Exhibit Six with concurrent numbers
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